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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Tell and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: David N. Carmany, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works  
  Steve Finton, City Engineer 
   
DATE: August 2, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration to Authorize the City Manager to Award an Agreement to Moffatt 

& Nichol for Preparation of Plans and Specifications for Localized Structural 
Rehabilitation of the Manhattan Beach Pier ($37,000)    

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that City Council pass a motion authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
agreement with Moffatt & Nichol in the amount of $37,000 to prepare plans and specifications for 
localized structural rehabilitation of the Manhattan Beach Pier. 
 

FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
Funding for this project in the amount of $500,000 was appropriated for this project through the 
fiscal year 2011-12 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
 

BUDGET 
FY2011-12 CIP; State Pier and Parking Fund $500,000.00

TOTAL BUDGET $500,000.00
 

EXPENDITURES 
Moffatt & Nichol Design Services $37,000.00
ESTIMATED BALANCE AVAILABLE FOR CONSTRUCTION  $463,000.00
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Manhattan Beach Pier is a reinforced concrete structure constructed between 1917 and 1920. 
In the 1950s, the County of Los Angeles completed a major repair project where pneumatically 
placed concrete was placed on areas showing deterioration.  This project resulted in an almost 
freeform shape of the piles and girders.  In the 1980s, corrosion in the reinforcing steel caused 
concrete to spall from the structure causing hazardous conditions for persons walking under the 
pier.  In 1988, the City entered into an operating agreement with the State of California where 
the City took over maintenance responsibilities for the pier.  Also in 1988, a full structural 
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assessment of the pier was conducted that identified structural deficiencies and recommended 
rehabilitation.  In 1992, the latest major rehabilitation project was completed.  This project 
included the full removal and replacement of the pier deck and much of the support structure.  
Other than lights and railing repairs, this was the last significant rehabilitation work performed 
on the pier. 
 

Pier Condition Assessment 
On August 3, 2010, the City issued a request for proposals (RFP) for inspection of the pier.  
Three proposals were received on September 15, 2010.  Based on their experience with marine 
structures, Moffatt & Nichol was selected to perform the condition assessment. On November 
16, 2010, City Council awarded a contract to Moffatt & Nichol to perform the pier assessment.  
 

Moffatt & Nichol performed the assessment in February and March 2011.  Divers performed 
underwater inspection of the piers and engineers used special boom trucks to inspect the under-
deck structure.  The inspection report was completed and submitted on May 20, 2011.  A copy of 
the report is available for review in the Office of the City Clerk.   
 

DISCUSSION: 
 

The Pier Condition Assessment Report indicates that the pier is in fair condition with localized 
areas of moderate to advanced deterioration.  Necessary rehabilitation was identified and 
prioritized as follows: 
           Estimated Cost 
Priority 1 Repairs recommended within 12 months  $178,000 
Priority 2 Repairs recommended within 36 months  $259,500 
Total         $438,300 
 

Priority 1 repairs are generally as follows: 
1. Rehabilitation of localized concrete cracks and spalls at 18 locations. 
2. Replacement of utility line hangers under the pier deck at 22 locations. 
3. Replacement of light pole hand hole covers at four locations. 
4. Installation of utility conduit at one location. 

 

Priority 2 repairs include crack and spall repairs at 50 locations. 
 

Recommended Agreement with Moffatt & Nichol 
It is recommended that both priority 1 and 2 repairs be performed concurrently.  Staff requested 
a proposal from Moffatt & Nichol to prepare plans and specifications for the completion of both 
the Priority 1 and 2 repairs.  Staff recommends awarding the agreement to Moffat & Nichol 
based on their demonstrated expertise with marine structures established through the 2010 
qualification based evaluation process.  Additionally, Moffatt & Nichol completed much of the 
drawing work during the condition assessment process which significantly reduces the level of 
effort and cost required to complete the plans and specifications for the rehabilitation work.  The 
recommended agreement is in the amount of $37,000. 
 
Attachment A:  Moffatt & Nichol Agreement 
 
xc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
  


























